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ITEM NO. 1:

FY 2007 BUDGET

(C.c. 06-31 and 06-49)

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee meeting for the community of Wailuku-Waikapu-Waihee-Kahului for April
3rd , 2006. For the record, we have Members Tavares, Pontanilla, Molina, Mateo, Kane,
Hokama, Johnson and Carroll present for this evening's meeting. Good evening. Those
of you here in Central Maui, welcome to this Committee meeting. We're here to provide
you the opportunity to give us comment on the 2007 Mayor's proposed bud~et for the
upcoming fiscal year which will start on July 1st, 2006 and will end on June 30t ,2007.
If you have not already signed up to testify, we ask that you do so right up here. We will
be allowing everybody an opportunity to testify. We will be giving equal time for
everybody. When your name is called, we need you to come up to the microphone, you
need to face us, talk to us since we're the ones that are going to be deliberating all the
information that you give us. We're going to give us a total of four minutes to testify. At
three minutes our staff people are going to let you know that you're at the three minute
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mark and you'11 have an additional minute to conclude your remarks. At four minutes, if
you continue to go after four minutes, we're going to politely interrupt you to let you
know that you need to end your remarks and if you keep going again we will interrupt
you to let you know that you need to conclude your remarks. So please make sure at four
minutes that you stop. And hang on, don't leave, we might have questions about your
testimony so we'd like you to sit tight just for a moment.
The most important thing that we'd like to know is your name. So when you do come up
please state your name for the record and if you do represent an organization or
organizations, we'd like to know that information as well.
With that being said, we're ready to go. Ladies and gentlemen, first to testify we have ..
. oh, and let me back up. Two things. If you have a cell phone or pager, we ask that you
turn it to the off or to the silent mode. We also ask that you want to carry a discussion
with somebody here in this room, we ask for your consideration in stepping aside and
carrying your conversation. Because it's a small room we're trying to avoid any
unnecessary distractions because we want to make sure that whoever is testifying has an
uninterrupted opportunity to share their thoughts.
With that being said, the first person to testify is Gabby Lopes. Gabby will be followed
by Kawailehua Watari LaBatte .

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. LOPES: Hi, my name is Gabrielle Lopes. I'm with Big BrotherslBig Sisters. I like being a
little sister because my big sister, Napua, comes over my house and sometimes brings
movies so that I can watch it with her. And she bakes cookies with me and also takes me
to the mall and helps me with my homework. Thank you for sponsoring Big
BrotherslBig Sisters. Mahalo for helping.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. LaBATTE: Hi, my name is Kawailehua LaBatte. I like being a little sister because my big
sister, Shirley, she can take me to the movies. Then she can take me to the Old Lahaina
Luau. And thank you for sponsoring Big BrotherslBig Sisters. Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, do you have any questions for these two young ladies?
Hearing none. Thank you very much, girls. Appreciate your testimony. Next, we have
Norita DeLima. She'll be followed by OJ Perreira.
MS. NORITA: Hi, hello.
CHAIR KANE: Good evening.
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MS. NORITA: My name is Norita DeLima and I would like to thank you for letting me have
this opportunity to speak. I'm here on behalf of MEO and the Hale Mahaolu Elua
residents. We're here to ask for more funding for transportation and funding for chore
service because our chore service has been cut. We have no window cleaning. We have
to hire somebody else to do our windows. They cut our service in half. So if we were
having three hours, we'll be having hour and a half or hour and fifteen minutes.
Also, I would like to, if it's possible, for you, somebody to check the street lights on ...
not the street lights but on Wakea and Hina to see if street lights can be put on because
right now, the cars are blocking the crosswalk and we cannot cross. We gotta sit there for
good 20 minutes before we can cross. And then the crosswalk right in front of Hina
going into Hale Mahaolu I think something should be done because they're speeding.
Thank you for your time.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. DeLima. Members, any questions for Ms. DeLima. Hearing
none. Thank you for your testimony this evening. OJ Perreira. OJ Perreira will be
followed by Casey Moreno.
MR. PERREIRA: Good evening. Hi, my name is Oliver Perreira. I've been attending the
Central Boys & Girls Club for five years since I was 12 years old. I am very thankful for
the programs that the Boys & Girls Club have offered me to reach my full potential in the
things that I do now. Now I am a youth development professional at the Paukukalo Boys
& Girls Club in Hawaiian Homes. Please keep supporting us and thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any questions for Mr. Perreira? Hearing none. Thank you. Casey
Moreno.
MS. MORENO: Hi, good evening. My name is Casey Moreno. I'm a parent of a child that
goes to Boys & Girls Club in Paukukalo, Hawaiian Homes. It has given my daughter a
lot of strength. They're wonderful providers. It has given her encouragement, and I
would like to thank you and keep supporting it. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Is this Bailey with you?
MS. MORENO: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead take that microphone right off and hand it to her. Bailey, go ahead.
MS. MORENO: Hi, my name is Bailey. I am 6 years old. I have a friend name Cavan; she's
nice to me that's why I go to Boys & Girls Club and I do my homework over there and it
helps me because people help me over there. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Bailey. This is Bailey Moreno, Members. Any questions for
Bailey? Hearing none. Thank you very much. Heidi Kalehuawehe followed by Mana
Sequeira.
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MS. KALEHUAWEHE: Good evening. My name is Heidi Kalehuawehe and I'm the Unit
Director for Boys & Girls Club of Maui in Paukukalo, which is located in the Hawaiian
Homes in Wailuku. Our club members' ages are from 6 to 17. We have 225 registered
members with an average daily attendance of 60 to 90 members a day. Our clubs provide
a safe place to learn and grow and to keep our members busy in different programs like
education and career, sports and fitness, arts and crafts, community service, and health
and life skills.
I just want to take this time to thank MEO Transportation for transporting our members
to our club site. Also you, the County Council, for your support and keep continuing
your support for the Boys & Girls Club ofMaui in Paukukalo. Thanks.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Kalehuawehe. Members, any questions? Hearing none.
Thank you for your testimony. Mana Sequeira? Is Mana available? Mana, alright ...
followed by Kai Sequeira.
MR. SEQUEIRA: Hi, my name is Mana Sequeira. I am here to thank you for ... I represent the
Boys & Girls Club of Central. I've been there for like three years. It teaches us to stay
out of trouble and gives us something to do and we really like it because we get to have
something to do and not stay home and all that stuff. Thank you for the new building,
which we probably won't be using because I'm going to graduate and all that. But all the
kids will love it, the new building and all that. And also I represent the MEO Youth
Bank Program. I just came back from Molokai, this Spring break, and we worked real
hard and it teaches me a lot of good stuff too, pono and all that, and yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mana. Members, questions? Hearing none. Thank you. Kai
Sequeira followed by Devin J akubczak.
MR. SEQUEIRA: Hello, Board Members. My name is Kai'ili Sequeira and I am a Sophmore at
Baldwin High School. So far, I've been a member of the Boys & Girls Club for three to
four years and I have noticed most of their programs like Smart Moves, which is like
DARE or GREAT programs and the Keystone Club and passport to manhood, which us
young men talk about, basically manhood stuff. I love our physical sports like flag
football, baseball, basketball seasons that we play against other clubs. Anyway, that's
just a summary of ... what I had to say about the Club.
The next program I am speaking on behalf of is the MEO Youth Bank Program. The
Youth Bank offers opportunities to experience working, responsibility, relationships, and
giving back to our community. The Youth Bank also gives me a chance to have fun in
environments like camping, community service work such as fishponds, taro patches,
beaches and other cultural sites. Basically, the MEO Youth Bank has open doors for me.
So, thank you for your time.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you for your testimony. Members, questions? Hearing none. Thank
you. Devin Jakubczak followed by Mana Perreira.
MS. JAKUBCZAK: Hi, my name is Devin Jakubczak and I'm a freshman at Baldwin High
School. I have been going to the Boys & Girls Club for about 4-5 years now. I go to the
Boys & Girls Club almost every day as well as some other members. This club means a
lot to us because it is basically our second home. It is a place where we can have fun or
just hang out with friends. The Boys & Girls Club has always been there for us because
when school is out, they'll open up just for us. They have all kinds of different programs
for the kids, like Smart Moves which teaches us the kinds of things drugs do to our body.
We have power hour where we can do our homework. We also have a sports program
where we can play sports against the other clubs on Maui. This club has been a great
experience for me as well as the other members. I would like to thank you for making
our new building possible.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you, Devin.
Mana Perreira followed by Ala Scungio. I'll let Ala say her last name or his last name.
Sorry. Scungio. Thank you.
MR. PERREIRA: Aloha, Council members. My name is Mana Perreira. I am a 10th grader at
Baldwin High School. I was a member, I am a member at the Boys & Girls Club for five
years, oh, six years. When I'm at the Boys & Girls Club I am free because the boys at
the club is like family and the staff is like my parents. They watch over me when I'm
going down. They take care of me when I'm at the Boys & Girls Club. So in the past
years the members at the Boys & Girls Club have been helping me. So, thanks, for your
paying attention.
I am also representing the MEO Youth Bank Program. We just came back from
Molokai. When we went there, we were learning how to create a new fishpond for all the
Hawaiians that want to come help. We also learned about the lokahi will to help one
another and we never quit. If we quit, we just bring each other up and have group
participation. If we fall down, we just tell them get up and help them build up their
courage and their knowledge to be one with a group together. Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mana. Members, questions? Hearing none. Thank you very much.
Ala Scungio to be followed by Kalei Hoopii Pascua.
MS. SCUNGIO: Aloha and good evening, Members of the County Council. My name is Ala
Scungio. On behalf of Boys & Girls Club, Central Unit, I'd like to say mahalo to all of
you for your continued support to our club. One of the biggest efforts on your part is a
brand new club that we have coming up. Hopefully we'll be opening the doors to new
members and existing members in June. We're very excited about this because it allows
us to have more space to run our programs more efficiently and more effectively.
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We're currently servicing approximately 80 to lOO kids daily. These kids are not just
kids that goes to the Afterschool program. They are family. And it's very important to
them because they need people like us to support them with their every day struggles.
You know, the peer pressure that they go through. The every day experiences that they
may have in life itself, at least they can come to one of us and talk to us. We try to
provide the positive environment for them. And most importantly that they're safe, and
they can come here and they can express their feelings, express what they're going
through, and all of us are there to help them and to make sure that these kids succeed. So
with your support, it helped us. We teach them lOO percent respect. We let them know
that respect goes both ways, not only one-way street. One of our mottos there at the club
is 100 percent respect for each other, for others, and for the club and its property. So the
new building will be taken care of because they know that. They know that with this
building they're going to ... it's like a foundation for them. So when they go out in life
they know that the little things that we did there at the program or the programs that they
did, it will help enhance them. Every child should have a foundation. And if it's not
from their families, it's going to be from the Boys & Girls Club, at least from the Central
Unit.
I also do one of the programs there which is the power hour. And that helps them be
more proficient in their knowledge, you know in school. And Project Learn, which
enforces and enhances their cognitive skills. This is just two of the programs that we
have going on over there, and career education is one of the biggest thing that we support
for our kids and encourage them to join because without that sometimes it's harder, it's a
struggle. And that's why we're there.
I want to express my deepest appreciation for all the love and aloha that you guys have
for our keikis because that's important. Mahalo for your time and all your efforts.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Scungio. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you.
Kalei Hoopii Pascua followed by John Jakubczak.
MS. PASCUA: Good evening, Council members. My name is Kaleialoha Hoopii Pascua. I'm
here to represent Central Maui Boys & Girls Club. I have four children that go there and
I believe it's important that the continuous support for this program goes on. We have a
lot of working families on Maui and I believe that sometimes it's hard to juggle between
child care and worrying about whether your children is at home by themselves. But with
the Boys & Girls Club whether it be Central, Upcountry, Paukukalo, I think it gives us
parents a sense of security that our kids are some place safe. Some place where there's
care for their education, their activities, to encourage them in positive ways and just to
bring them up in the right way. And sometimes us parents cannot always be there
because we do work. I just think it's important that our kids are somewhere safe. And
with the leadership they have going on at the Boys & Girls Club is really strong and I
think our kids learn not only from the leadership of adults but it also teaches those who
went there when they were younger to lead the new people in a positive way. And I think
it's a lot easier for a young adult, a teenager or a child to be encouraged by their peers
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who are following in a positive direction. And thank you for the support and I hope the
support continues on and knowing that you guys are always there to listen to us parents
who really appreciate this program and knowing that there are some kids that need a
place to go although their parents may not work but they need that socialization with
other kids and other adults outside of their home. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Pascua. Next, we have John Jakubczak followed by Kelly
Pearson.
MR. JAKUBCZAK: Good evening, Chairman and Council members. My name is John
Jakubczak and I am the parent of Devin who was up here earlier speaking to you. The
reason I'm here is to thank you for your support for your support of the new facility at
Kanaloa for the Boys & Girls Club. As you've seen earlier with the, not only with my
daughter but the other speakers here, they're pretty special kids who learned a lot and
gained a lot from going to the Boys & Girls Club. And it's true, not only Central Maui
but all throughout Maui and the other islands, in fact, nationwide, we're so glad to have
Boys & Girls Club here, especially as a parent that our kids can go to a positive place that
they can be learned and take responsibility in what they do so your support in this new
facility is really welcomed.
I'd also like to acknowledge the staff of the Boys & Girls Club who, you know, a lot of
times they say policeman, fireman, and others and Council persons are heroes in our
community but this staff at the Boys & Girls Club are true heroes that they're there every
day for support and to teach our kids in the absence of parents who were working at that
time. So I thank you very much for your support.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Jakubczak. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank
you. Kelly Pearson followed by Marc Springs.
MS. PEARSON: You'll be happy to know that I'm the last of the Boys & Girls Club speakers.
Anyway, aloha, County Council members. To start I want to thank you for the new
building, the new clubhouse. Because I started there nine years ago as the Unit Director
of the Central Maui Youth Center before it became a Boys & Girls Club and the new
building is actually a dream of mine that I've had for the last nine years. So, mahalo, to
you. The kids used to shoot basket in the dumpster that's how we started out and now we
have basketball courts and a brand new building to look forward to.
Over the last two to three weeks you got to hear from the youth, the parents, volunteer
board members and the professional staff of the youth development organization that has
been serving Maui for the last 12 years. But we couldn't have done it without you.
That's why tonight all you've been hearing is thank yous because basically that's what
Boys and Girls Club want to do is thank you. So on behalf of our five clubs, the many
outreach programs that we have, the thousands of youth that we serve and their families, I
want to say thank you, again.
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In a nutshell, your support has allowed us to give the kids of Maui the confidence they
need to make it in life. You've helped us to make learning fun, which is really important.

You've helped us to make dreams come true and you've given us the means to give our
youth hope and opportunity. So in a nutshell, together we will be building a better future
for Maui. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Pearson. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
very much. Marc Springs followed by Melissa Chimera.
MR. SPRINGS: Hello, my name is Marc Springs. I am with Americorp. and also MEO, and I
also have the privilege of working with the MEO Youth Bank kids. In the past few years,
I've been able to perform acts of crucial environmentalism through the support of MEO
and Maui County. For a full year, four days a week, I worked on Kahoolawe eradicating
non-native plants and propogating native ones with Kahoolawe Island Reserve
Commission. These are not cosmetic acts. They're necessities that I would not have
been able to facilitate for our County without the people and resources of MEO. For the
past two years, I've been able to attend Maui Community College to enhance my
personal resources and to enrich my quality of service for Maui County. With the
educational award I was granted by Americorp.
I'm a prime example of MEO enriching our community one person at a time. And I'm
one of many cases like that. Recently, I've been able to help revitalize the Makena
wetlands with one of my mentors, Kimokea Kapahulehua because of the support ofMEO
this County and so many individuals in Maui County. Please continue to support MEO
and all its endeavors so that we might continue to build a better community and an
environmentally conscious County. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Springs. Members, questions? Hearing none. Thank you very
much. Melissa Chimera followed by Nida Ramos. Melissa, good evening.
MS. CHIMERA: Aloha, Council members, Council Chair. I'm Melissa Chimera with the
Nature Conservancy and I'm here to ask you for your continued support of $530,000
towards watershed protection in both the Water Department budget and the Office of
Economic Development budget. I'm here tonight to show you the past, present and
future of watershed protection in Maui County and to present to you a five-year strategic
plan highlighting the next phase of watershed protection. But first I want to recognize the
County's long standing relationship with the watershed partnerships and its support. I
want to thank you for the seed money that you provided that built the very first fences,
remove the worse forest invaders and generally got the Maui Nui partnerships off to a
promising start. Your support has helped to build four miles of fence across Honomanu,
Koolau Gap, Hanawi, and Kahakuloa and dozens more fences on Maui alone. It's all
over this island. County money has made fences on Lanai's summit deer proof and has
assisted with fencing on newly managed leeward Haleakala lands too. Staff and
volunteers have hunted across Hana mountain, removed hundreds of feral pigs from
Kahoma, Wahikuli, Hanaula on West Maui as well as over a thousand goats and pigs
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from East Molokai. And these achievements are from voluntary partnerships which
reside in no particular government agency. Its effectiveness of these partnerships that do
not simply follow land and/or boundaries that are a success.
The 34 partners of Maui, Molokai and Lanai recognize that the forest under the
protection are collectively a State, County and private trust across 215,000 acres
safeguarding the source of three island water supply. And yet, one size does not fit all.
Each partnerships differences, strength and the overall conservation effort because they
are tailored to the individual landowners, community and unique resources they serve.
The West Maui mountain and East Maui mountain watershed partnerships, for example,
protect 150,000 acres of upland forests while the leeward Haleakala restoration watershed
partnership aims to generate koa forest that once span all of South Haleakala. The East
Molokai watershed partnership and the Lanai Institute for Environment take a summit to
sea approach for caring for their mauka and makai resources.
I want to let you know that Maui County is foremost in the State and it's support of these
innovative partnerships. And in doing so, your support has leveraged $757,000 in private
contributions last year alone. However, the successes are on a small scale and compared
to the total unmanaged lands let's protect the small scale successes. The partnerships
have matured and are ready to significantly expand their work to a landscape level that
will maximize protection of their resource. The total amount needed to adequately fence
and remove threats across 215,000 acres on three islands is about 5.8 million armually or
about 1.2 million per landscape. And this bill won't get any smaller simply by chipping
at a way at it in small amounts. The challenge that lies before us is to invest in a wellfunded watershed management program to ensure our water supply. And this can only be
done as you well know by pulling State, County, Federal and private resources together.
For example, the Nature Conservancy and the East Maui Watershed Partnership are
experimenting with such an investment. We have a project aimed at achieving near zero
pig damage and activity levels within 12,000 acres within just three years. This is called
go deep because it's a major investment of resources aimed at a particular project site and
this is just the kind of up front investment that our forest needs.
So, with all that in mind, I am asking you to support the Economic Development budget
of 200,000 and 330,000 of the Water Department budget towards watershed protection.
And again, thank you for your consideration of this request. It really is the next phase of
implementation necessary for the survival of our resources. Thanks.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Chimera. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
for your testimony.
MS. CHIMERA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Nida Ramos to be followed by Michele Goff.
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MS. RAMOS: My name is Nida Ramos and I represent MEO. MEO sent me to school. I just
came from the Philippines and, you know, Philippines is so expensive for going to school
like CNA but then MEO paid my school so now I'm a ... not yet a CNA but I will have
an exam on Friday for the American Red Cross and I will fulfill my dream as a CNA and
I would like to thank MEO for that.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Members, any questions for Ms. Ramos? Ms. Johnson.
Question for you.
MS. RAMOS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to find out under which program did you get
the educational support? Is it a particular program like they have MEO micro-enterprise,
they have MEO, I know it's not Head Start because that's for little kids. Is it Enlace
Hispano?
MS. RAMOS: Maybe this is from the Asian people.
MR. GAXIOLA: The employment core services for immigrants and thus funded through the
Office of Community Services from the State.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So it's the community service program then?
MR. GAXIOLA: Yeah, those are State funds and it comes from our community service
department.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you.
MS. RAMOS: Is there any more questions?
CHAIR KANE: No. Thank you very much, Ms. Ramos. Michele Goff followed by Ane Miller.
MS. GOFF: Good evening. My name is Michele Goff. This is my son, Julian. I would like to
thank you for the funds you have provided me towards paying my son's tuition at MEO's
Kahi Kamali'i. I would not be able to afford it on my own. I am very grateful for the
assistance you give to my son and me. I recently completed my internship with Mana
Web Solutions and I'm starting my own web design business. Your help allows my son
to be in a safe, positive and educational environment while I'm working. It gives me
peace of mind to know that he is being cared for by the loving and knowledgeable
teachers at MEO's Kahi Kamali'i. They teach the children to be kind to one another,
share, say please and thank you, learn songs, read books, feed themselves, wash their
hands, brush their teeth, clean up their messes and potty training. I humbly ask that you
please continue to support my scholarship so I can afford to keep my son in this
wonderful environment. Thank you for your time and consideration.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Goff. Ms. Miller, Ane Miller.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: She left.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Mahea Eleneki. James Jardine. Is James Jardine available?
MR. JARDINE: Sorry. I was outside.
CHAIR KANE: No problem.
MR. JARDINE: Hi, my name is James Jardine and I'm here representing Kahi Kamali'i. My
son goes to that school. I'm not good at speeches so don't mind me. Before I enrolled
my son in Kahi Kamali'i, my parents would care for him while my wife and I worked.
After my mother was diagnosed with cancer, we had to search for new child care for him.
We quickly realized that it would be impossible for us to afford his child care and I faced
losing my job. Had it not been for Kahi Kamali'i, I would be struggling to provide for
my children today.
My son has been attending Kahi Kamali'i since October 2005, and I believe that they're
the best child care on the island. Every day he goes there I am comforted by the fact that
I know he's treated with love and kindness and a high quality of early childhood
program. I believe they have helped shape the way my children will learn, think and
behave for the rest of their life. The teachers are wonderful and have often been a mentor
for me and my parenting.
By maintaining or increasing the support of Kahi Kamali'i, more families like ours will
be provided with the opportunity for their child to reach their fullest potential. Thank you
for your time and your support.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Jardine. Members, any questions for our testifier? Hearing
none. Thank you.
MR. JARDINE: Alright, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: And you are on Hawaiian time. You wasn't late.
MR. JARDINE: Yeah, I know. And another thing, I would like to give a hand to my son's
teacher here, Monica, for doing such a wonderful job. Alright, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Vilma Casio-Dickenson followed by Kim Martinez.
MS. CASIO-DICKENSON: Good evening, Council. My name is Vilma Casio-Dickenson. I
didn't expect to give a speech tonight but I am from the heart I want to say thank you
very much. Being a parent is very hard. I only have one daughter and I think Kahi
Kamali'i has taught me how to be a parent. And financially it's been hard. I work two
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jobs and it's hard to be home with my daughter to teach her the things I can because I
believe you need to spend time, good quality time with your child. And to know
someone like Monica to be there to take care of my daughter it gives me a sense of relief
and peace of mind because I have my mother who used to take care of my daughter is 60
years old going through congestive heart failure. Her health is failing so I can't depend
on her. So to know that I have a safe place to bring her really helps me a lot - mentally,
physically, emotionally, and I just love the staff there. I don't worry. And I as a mother
who has to work two jobs, I'm zipping in and out so I can really trust the staff there. So I
really support Kahi Kamali'i. It's a wonderful curriculum that they have and just to see
my daughter grow up even faster than me sometimes. It's just amazing how they grow ..
. brushing their teeth already, knowing how to pull out the chair and sit down and I am
amazed to see this little being developing. So, I think it's a perfect program and whatever
you can do to support and have it continued is wonderful. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Casio-Dickenson. Members, any questions? Hearing none.
Thank you for your testimony. Kim Martinez followed by Shelly Pellegrino.
MS. MARTINEZ: Hi, my name is Kim Martinez. And I just wanted to say thank you for
continuing to support Kahi Kamali'i. I am very fortunate to have the opportunity to have
my daughter attend Kahi Kamali'i. Finding a child care on Maui for her age group,
which is two and under, is very difficult. So if my daughter wasn't able to attend Kahi
Kamali'i, she would probably be tossed back and forth between friends and family,
which in turn, would probably mean she would watch too many Dora and Barney DVDs.
So, I just wanted to say thank you once again and I know that Kahi Kamali'i will also
help my daughter once again when she transitions into preschool. So, thank you very
much for your support.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Martinez. Members? Thank you. Shelly Pellegrino followed
by Deidre Tegarden.
MS. PELLEGRINO: Good morning. Good evening.
CHAIR KANE: Good morning.
MS. PELLEGRINO: My name is Shelly Pellegrino. It feels like morning sometimes. This is
what happens when you have a one-year old and a three-year old. You don't know what
time of day it is. I also am here tonight to ask you to support Kahi Kamali'i Infant and
Toddler Center, which is one ofMEO's Early Childhood Services programs.
When I decided to return home to Maui a couple of years ago, I had a one-year old son
and I was pregnant with my second son. And one of my primary concerns, having grown
up here was trying to figure out who can we trust to take care of our children because as
you know, it often ... generally it takes two incomes to support a family here on Maui
and sometimes more than two incomes. And a friend told me about Kahi Kamali'i and
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we took a look, we were still living on the mainland, but we were very, very impressed
with the program.
When we returned to Maui a few months later, we enrolled our son who was then just 1
12 years old, and Kahi Kamali'i has not let us down. I see you all the time so I'm sorry.
See even lawyers cry. Kahi Kamali'i provides a safe, clean, nuturing, respectful
environment in which our children can learn to grow and be supported and be loved. The
facility is first-rate and the caregivers are wonderful. Our 1 Yz year just turned three and
he just graduated from Kahi Kamali'i and we're very pleased to say that our one-year old
took his place and just started.
As you can tell, Kahi Kamali'i doesn't limit its services to children. It supports parents
as well. It supports parents by providing evening workshops and everything from
positive discipline to potty training and we've definitely had to do quite a bit of both. But
quality child care, as you know, doesn't come cheap. And many parents must rely on
scholarships to help pay for day care. We've been fortunate in that we haven't needed to
use a scholarship but there are many, many other families there who do. And this is
where the County comes in. Without County assistance, many families who currently
rely on Kahi Kamali'i's excellent services simply wouldn't be able to afford it. And your
funding ensures that type of parental support continuous.
As you can tell; my family means a lot to me. All of our families mean a lot to all of us
so please continue to support quality child care by funding MEO's Kahi Kamali'i Infant
Toddler Center. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Pellegrino. Members, questions? Hearing none. Thank you
very much. Robyne Nishida Nakao followed by Lisa Yamada.
MS. NAKAO: Good evening, Chair Kane, Committee Members. I'm here to ask for your
support to fund $100 - $150,000 to develop the West Maui Adult Day Care facility. As
you know, the West Maui Adult Day Care group is in the old Malu DIu 0 Lele Park and
it's a very old building and falling apart. So Hale Mahaolu partnered with the Day Care
Center and wanting to provide them a new facility, safe, ADA and they're able to expand
their services in West Maui. I've provided written testimony for you so I stand by that
testimony and I'll take any questions.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. If you can state your name for the record, please.
MS. NAKAO: Robyn Nishida Nakao from Hale Mahaolu.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Nakao. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
for your testimony. Lisa Yamada followed by Tom Cannon.
MS. YAMDA: Good evening, my name is Lisa Yamada and I'm speaking on behalf of the
MCCIMEO Head Start Program. First of all, I want to thank all of you for being here
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tonight. I'm one of the many single parents who really appreciates your help and without
the funding life will be really, really hard for me and my three kids. We really need
funds from the County to help support our MCC Head Start from 12 noon until 3:20 p.m.
I'm one of the parents who is attending MCC to get a Bachelor's Degree to make a better
living for me and my children, and most classes run well after 12 noon. Providing MCC
Head Start with continued funding will make sure that our children and children of the
future get a head start on their education to a better and brighter future. After all, they are
our future so please continue to support our school. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Yamada. Members, questions? Thank you very much. Tom
Cannon followed by John ... John Duey, I'm sorry.
MR. CANNON: Aloha, Council members. I'm Tom Cannon speaking on behalf of the Wailuku
Main Street Association/Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center. I know that the Tri-Isle
Main Street Resource Center is familiar to you. Thank you very much for your past
support of our effort to achieve economic revitalization of Maui County's small towns
within the context of historic and cultural preservation.
Main Street is a comprehensive program providing assistance to Wailuku, Makawao,
Haiku, Paia and other Maui County small towns. Main Street's program structure
provides for volunteer independent professionals to assist the community by working
with government agencies to evaluate, create, and implement a number of definitive
plans. In addition to our volunteer structure and design committee has provided many
years of professional design review on behalf of the community for proposed projects
within Maui County's small towns helping to ensure that the growth can be carefully
designed and compatible with each town's local character.
County's support of the Main Street Program is a good investment that has proven to be
more than cost effective. Our dedicated staff and volunteers make use of limited
resources and, in addition, provide planning assistance directly. They also provide a
framework for a tremendous volunteer effort on the community's behalf. Without this
framework, all the donations of time and independent community-based analysis would
be lost.
Please continue to support this important work for WMSAfTri-Isle Main Street Resource
Center with full funding within the Planning Department's budget. The funds will be
well spent and leveraging the maximum benefit from our volunteers and providing the
County with valuable community-based professional services that are in practical terms
unavailable otherwise.
Thank you for continuing to see the tremendous assistance that WMSAfTri-Isle Main
Street Resource Center is providing Maui County's communities. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Cannon. Members, any questions for Tom? Seeing none.
Thank you very much. John Duey followed by Divina Sanchez.
MR. DUEY: Good evening, Council Chair Kane and the other illustrious Council members. My
name is John V. Duey. I'm representing Hui 0 Na Wai Eha this evening. I want to thank
you for taking the time out of your schedule in meeting with us every evening it seems. I
know that you'll be on the neighbor islands the next couple nights.
You folks have a big job deciding where the dollar should go when all of us want a piece
of the pie. There are many worthwhile CIP projects in this '07 budget. One that should
be near the top or at the top, of course, you know what that is - the water.
I have a kind of a question before I go on. On Page 10 of the CIP budget there's a lineitem for lao drainage and I don't know what that's for. There's $500,000 I think from the
County and another $500,000 from the Federal. And I hope it's not doing more
channelization.
I will referring the CIP budget, oh, the DWS slogan says, I wish George was here to sing
it, by water all things find life. I wish he was here to sing a little jingle. I will be

referring to the CIP budget Page 15 under Water Supply. We are in support of the
$200,000 in the budget as a line appraisal and associate things go with the appraisal. And
also the $7 million for the purchase of the surface water intakes has the necessary land to
control our water. We're aware that this process will take some time but time is of the
essence. The longer we wait, the harder and more expensive it will become.
The big question here is just why are we as taxpayers buying water that is a public trust?
Why? Water that is being diverted and sold as distribution contracts as stated in the State
Constitution, Article 11, Section 1 for the benefit of ... reading the Constitution, for the
benefit of present and future generations the State and the political subdivision shall
conserve and protect Hawaii's natural beauty and all natural resources including land,
water, air, minerals and energy resources.
The last statement. All public natural resource are held in trust by the State for the
benefit of the people. This is out of the Con Con of 1978. And further, Section 7 of
Article 11, the State has an obligation to protect and control and regulate the use of the
water, Hawaii's water resources for the benefit of its people. It says people, not a private
entity. It says nothing there that a private entity is controlling the water. It also says that
the State is a Trustee but the State has been dragging its feet. The Hui and Maui
Tomorrow filed a Petition to amend the in-stream flow standards in June 25, 2004. By
State law, by the State's own law, 174C at 2E, action was suppose to happen within 180
days and that would have been December, Christmas of 2004 or 2006 now or year and
something passed their own stated deadline. Weare still waiting. Weare not on the
agenda yet.
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So you, as Council members, have an opportunity to go one up or maybe even ten up on
the State by acquiring the intakes, this system, land and/or all three to control our water
sources, resources ... something that the State has been all too slow in doing, and they
would be doing a great service to the residents and future residents ofMaui.
Restoring mauka to makai stream flow would have a lot of positive effects. One, would
allow the lao and Waihee Aquifers to recharge the DWS water source; would allow the
stream life to become more abundant, I'll talk more about this Wednesday morning;
would allow finally downstream the diversion to open for the kalo. Support diversified
agriculture, would return flows to culture significant streams and would also allow keikis
to swim the low parts of the stream and, last to increase the nearshore fish and green life.
The settlement with the Mayor and the funding including the CIP would go far and
extremely above goals. We need stream flows and we need water for other uses. Storage
is the long range answer for both. We as the Hui cannot do this alone. The Mayor
cannot do this alone, nor can the Council. We need all . . . we all need each other so we
are asking for your support. Thank you very much and I'll see you Wednesday morning
at nine.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Duey. Members, questions? Hearing none. Thank you for
your testimony. Divina Sanchez followed by Charles Barr.
MS. SANCHEZ: Hi, good evening, everybody. I'm not really prepared to say anything tonight
but whatever comes out through my mouth is coming from my heart so ... I would like
to thank first all of you for the past years that you supported MEO Head Start because my
son he goes to Kahului A under MEO Head Start and it's been very fortunate with the
teachers that my son went under and then I would like to ask for your continued support
and add more budget for MEO Head Start because we all know that if we want to be
productive we start from our kids, and that education is very important especially, you
know, I am a single mom and I see myself as a productive citizen because I am able to go
to work and I am able to go to school because of your support to this organization. So,
please continue to support MEO Head Start and please add more budget because we can
see really these kids are learning and these kids are becoming productive and this is our
future generation. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And if you can please state your name for the record.
MS. SANCHEZ: I'm Divina Sanchez.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Sanchez. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you.
Charles Barr followed by Linda Tamanaha.
MR. BARR: Yes, good evening. My name is Charlie Barr. I am the new Program Coordinator
with the Community Work Day Program. On behalf of the Community Work Day
Program, I want to thank the Budget and Finance Committee for providing continued
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funding for the programs for Fiscal Year '07. The mission of Community Work Day
Program continues to be to educate, facilitate, local and County wide efforts empowering
individuals and communities to beautify and maintain environmentally healthy islands.
Annually, Community Work Day coordinates and conducts five State-wide community
clean ups that results in removal of tons of litter, debris, abandoned tires, junk cars, and
appliances along with beautification projects resulting in the planting of hundreds of
native plants and numerous graffiti paint outs.
This past year, Community Work Day Programs recycling and clean up events have
resulted in a collection and recycling of over one hundred tons of computer wastes, the
collection and redistribution of nearly 2,000 gallons of old and used paint, and conducted
over 53 trips to the landfill for the disposal of approximately 48 tons of trash and debris.
We've also continued our volunteer support for the restoration of old Maui High School
providing up to two dozen crews for various clean up efforts beyond the five annual clean
ups that we conduct. Economically, Community Work Day is a proven success.
Providing an average of over $10.00 of volunteer effort for every dollar received from the
County. And for even some events, such as our aloha aina clean up, we have tracked
returns as high as $27.00 of in-kind effort for every dollar provided through funding.
So, again, we want to thank you for the continued support and as we continue to work
with volunteers throughout Maui County. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Barr. Members, questions? Hearing none. Thank you for your
testimony. Linda Tamanaha and she'll be followed by Leonardo Sequeira.
MS. TAMANAHA: Good evening, Council members. I'm Linda Tamanaha. I have two items
to ask for your support tonight. The first one is Maui Nui Botannical Gardens. I am VP
of Membership for the Maui County Boys Scouts of America. I am also in charge of the
Cub Scouts activities. We have used Maui Nui Botannical Gardens for many of our
camps and our activities. The staff has instructed the Cub Scouts on Hawaiian traditions,
plants and many other things. The Cub Scouts have performed service projects such as
planting little banana trees and other things that they give us. There aren't many places
that the Cub Scouts can go and conduct their activities that they have plenty of room not
only for themselves but for their parents. Maui Nui Botannical Garden is a great place
not only for the Cub Scouts but for the community.
The second one is I wanted to thank you for all your support that you have given to
Wailuku Main Street/Tri-Isle Resource Center. I am currently the Vice Chair of the
Board. Wailuku Main Street Association has a team of professionals and broad-based
community representatives reflecting in its boards and committees along with the
qualified staff to accomplish the community'S vision and the County goals. Town by
town we are preserving the unique character, sense of place, and economic viability of
Maui County's small towns. The work of Tri-Isle Resource Center augments services of
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the County departments to fully implement community plans. Tri-Isle Resource Center
services is not only in Wailuku town but in several other towns of Maui County.
Wailuku Main Street Association works with the Maui Redevelopment Agency, the
Office of Economic Development, Department of Planning and many other agencies. We
are asking for $225,000 for the coming budget. I am before you tonight to please
continue your support for us. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tamanaha. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank
you very much. Leonardo Sequeira followed by Lucienne deNaie.
MR. SEQUEIRA: Thank you. Aloha, Council members, and Chairman. My name is Leonardo
Sequeira. I'm here on behalf of MEO. I'm supporting my sons, Kaiali'i and Manali'i
who you heard earlier testify for Boys and Girls Club as well as MEO Youth Bank. I was
so surprised to see them testify because I know, you know, my kids are extremely shy
and seeing them over here in front of all you guys and everybody else I'm extremely
speechless. And I got to tell you, Youth Bank has done all of these things for my sons.
I've got two kids and I've got one more coming up four years old so I know pretty soon
he's going to be a Youth Bank participant. My oldest son, who is in the service right
now, was also a MEO participant and is serving his country right now in Iraq so all this
been doing good.
Just today we just got a call from him telling how the brothers doing, how MEO Youth
Bank is doing, and we just told him they just got back from Molokai, had a great time,
they learned a lot of stuff and all that. And the brothers had a chance to share with him.
So I'm here to tell you, MEO Youth Bank is doing a good job here in the community for
the kids. That's our future so I'm here to ask you guys to please continue to support that.
As a parent, I don't know if you heard earlier one of the parents was saying, you know,
you should listen to us because we are over there in the front line with the children who
are the future and we're trying to educate them and show them and guide them in the best
way. And all this programs, you know, with MEO are doing that. They're helping us as
a parent, to show and guide them to all this difficult trials and life. So I'm here to ask
you guys for your support of MEO Youth Bank as well as the Enlace Hispano. I'm
Hispanic myself and I'm here to say that you all know that the Hispanic community is
growing very rapidly and they are productive people. Unfortunately, some of them they
couldn't be here physically because they're working. It's not that they don't want to be
here because they're working. So I want to make sure to let you know to please continue
to support the Enlace Hispano and the MEO program as a whole. Just like Head Start
and all the programs in MEO. They're a very important organization that is helping the
community. We're here to stay and we're here to live together. And the more we help
each other, the better productive we'll be. So please continue your support and I
appreciate that very much for your time.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Sequeira. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
very much. Lucienne deNaie followed by Aaron King.
MS. deNAIE: Aloha, committee members. Thank you for your patient attention these many
days. My name is Lucienne deNaie. I'm here tonight testifying on behalf of Sierra Club
Maui group. And I'd like a minute to just say my own piece to just as a private citizen, if
I may. But we want to thank you for being here and carefully considering all the things
in the budget and ask for your support of five or six important things that our essential to
protecting our quality of life here on Maui Nui.
First of all, is the $7 million to purchase portions of Wailuku Agribusiness watershed
lands and whatever systems are necessary to allow restoration of stream flows in Na Wai
Eha as well as recharge our aquifers and give us a public say over a public resource. We
are happy that the Council wants to be part of making history here. We are grateful that
the Mayor put this item in the budget so it can be discussed and we know you'll find a
way to do the right thing.
We also support the ongoing efforts of Community Work Day to keep the islands of
Maui clean and healthy and ask you to fully fund their budget request. I believe it's
about $180,000. This is an amazing organization. I worked with them very closely cause
I'm a clean up leader and we just wouldn't even start some of these projects if they
weren't there with the supplies and the know hows. I can't tell you the junk that we've
pulled out of our lands with the Rotary Club and the Sierra Club and everybody always
coming together in partnerships. But they're there with the places to put it, with the bags,
with the supplies.
We also would like to ask for full funding for the budget request that have been submitted
to support the great work that Maui Nui Botannical Gardens is doing. This is such a
terrific resource and it's so well managed and it's so accessible to people and it's taking
pressure off of our native forests where folks don't have to go only trampling around in
places that some times are pretty delicate. In order to see native plants, they can learn
about them right in the comfort of downtown Kahului in a beautiful setting that's
peaceful and safe for the keiki. I love to see the keiki play there, you know. It's such a
multi-faceted facility.
And we also hope that you will look into funding stream flow studies as a first step to
amending stream flow standards from one of our legendary streams - Kauaula Stream in
the West Maui side. This area traditionally has been written about in mele. There's a lot
of historical documents about how much water once nourished the whole plain in that
area. It's part of the water supply for the sacred island of Moku'ula. And it really
deserves the attention now that we're getting development in that area. We should take a
little bit of the funding and give back.
We also support funding and updated Cultural Resources Management Plan for South
Maui. This is one of the implementing actions that was listed in our Kihei-Makena
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Community Plan and I'm sure you're all familiar with it. And it sort of sat there but as
we come to the CIP under the Planning Department budget, Items 4 and 5, update the
County's Cultural Resource Management Plan and, five, develop a historic or cultural
district overlay ordinance and indigenous architecture ordinance, which this Council has
accomplished the indigenous architectural ordinance. But we encourage you to look for
ways to create a cultural overlay zone both in Hana and in South Maui. And both
community plans support this.
And then, as a private individual, who has no fire protection to speak of, I would like to
speak in favor ofthe Haiku fire station. This is a very fast growing area. It's fast and not
being the country rural setting it used to be and fire protection is pretty essential when
you have, you know, lots of kids living there and lots of family. So please continue in
your efforts to support that. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. deNaie. Members, any questions? Yes, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Lucienne, do you know how much the study would cost
for the instream flow study for Kauaula?
MS. deNAIE: I'm not sure what it would be. For Na Wai Eha, I believe, it was $1 million for a
three-year study. But that's for four streams. So it could be a quarter of that perhaps.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: If you could, you know, find out?
MS. deNAIE: I would do my very best to find out.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. deNAIE: Sure.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, any further questions, Members? Hearing none. Thank you very much.
MS. deNAIE: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Next person to testify is Aaron King and then we'll be taking a lO-minute break
to let the staff take a break real briefly and the Members to take care of their personal
needs. And we'll be back in ten minutes. Mr. King, go ahead.
MR. KING: I am here representing EAST. So EAST is a school program. It's called ... EAST
stands for Environmental and Spatial Technology. And it basically brings technology
into the classroom. We are sponsored by MEDB which is, in tum, sponsored by you
guys, I think. Really EAST is basically a catalyst for like job development and
networking skills for students. So it brings like technology like industry standard
technology, like GPS software, like a lot of animation software, lot of data gathering and
handling software. And they let the kids use them in like, you know, to do community
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projects so we actually go out and we do community projects. And then we put together
a presentation and we have to do team building. So it really ties in a lot of real business
world skills into the classroom. And one of these things is GIS, which is Geo Spatial
Information Systems, which is really huge right now because we're doing all over Maui
and we're plotting out the terrain and everybody is getting into it because it's so helpful.
It's every where like emergency response, like parenting alien species infestation by
mapping out the areas that we need to combat and it's really helpful in a lot of places.
And we have that technology in our classroom and we're teaching it to the kids.
Another thing that EAST does is we go to a conference every year to Arkansas and we
collaborate with everyone else in the country who is doing EAST and we get an idea of
what they're doing and like what we can be doing in our community to help further.
We've done a project where we've talked about native plants and we've mapped out
some places where native plants grow and helped Akimeka to, Akimeka is the
organization that runs the digital bus and we help them in their endeavors to educate
middle schoolers.
And we've also helped out with the Maui Police Department with ... we're trying to map
out trails and get like the trail in geo-spatial information along with the name of the trail
like the local names because they don't actual have them. They just say, oh, where are
you, oh, yeah, I was at so and so beach and they don't really know where that beach is.
So in order to help them rescue people faster, you know, we try to get them the real name
the everyone calls the beaches and stuff.
So, that's just a few examples of EAST. And the thing I really like about EAST is that
it's for everybody. It's not just for the tech people of the school. I mean, we get an entire
cross section of our school coming into EAST and just pulling off some amazing stuff
using the technology and it really do projects too. And they learn a lot about it and they
discover whether or not they want to go into that field or stuff. So, thank you for your
time and please support EAST.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. State your name for the record, please.,
MR. KING: Oh, Aaron King.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Aaron. Members, any questions for Aaron? Hearing none. Keep
up the good work, Aaron. Thank you. Okay, Members, we're going to go ahead and
take a lO-minute break. Time now is 7:37 p.m. We'll go off of the clock that I have in
front of me. We'll recess until 7:47 p.m. This Committee stands in recess .... (gave/) . ..
RECESS: 7:37 p.m.
RECONVENE: 7:47 p.m.
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CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Meeting reconvene. Thank you for that short break. Everybody
needed to stretch their leg for a moment. Okay, our next person testifying is Pauline
Cabotage. And forgive me if I'm mispronouncing your name. And following Pauline is
Max Del Valle.
MS. CABOTAGE: Hi, I'm Pauline Cabotage. I'm a second year EAST student from Maui
High. And so far I've learned from EAST that there's a lot of community-based projects
that we get involved in. One such project that I'm personally involved in is the GIS/GPS
project where we work with the digital bus and compile all the data that has been
gathered by the 5th graders and lower level students.
Also, EAST is a class where I get to go at my own pace. Like I get to learn a program at
my own speed and I don't have to read from a textbook or anything. So I thought that
was a great thing that, you know, we don't sit down there and listen to someone rant on
and on to something. And also we get to study something we're actually interested in.
Like at the beginning of my freshman year I get to pick a program that I would like to
study and I've stuck with that and I'm glad because I learn about it and I get to share that
information with the newer students.
Also, EAST is a class where you can just walk in there without really knowing so much
but you learn and you grow with the other students around you. Also, you get to share
information with them and learn from them. So, it's a very intrapersonal thing where you
get to communicate with others. And you kind of use them as tools so that you can make
yourself better to help the others around you as well.
And another project I worked on was I made a comic book for the Teen Pregnancy
Center in our school. It's to basically raise awareness on the rate of teen pregnancy and
your options and what you can do and what you can do if it happens to you. With that
we're already making a video as a PSA so yeah. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Right on, Ms. Cabotage. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
very much. Max Del Valle followed by Jan Dapitan.
MR. DEL VALLE: Good evening, Council member and everyone in the room. My name is
Max Del Valle. I'm here to tell you how Enlace Hispano has helped me make my life
easier over here on Maui, my family and me.. Enlace Hispano helped me a lot of times
with documents, letters to the Spanish. They take the time to go over my letters and
explain what it means. When I needed the help, these people in Enlace Hispano sent me
to the right person all the time. That's why I'm coming over her to support the Enlace
Hispano and the budget that these people requests. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Del Valle. Members, any questions? Thank you very much for
your testimony. Thank you, Mr. Sequeira.
MR. SEQUEIRA: Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Jan Dapitan followed by Susana Browne.
MS. DAPITAN: Good evening. My name is Jan Dapitan and I am the Executive Director of
Community Work Day Program. This program has been in existence for almost 25 years.
It will not give up. We will continue to clean up after but we do need the continued
support, the financial support that you have been so generously providing. We want to
educate, concentrate more and get back to our core base of education. We also have a
national directive this year to look at water. And as these last weeks have hit us all, we
know that streams and the debris in streams of pollution in our oceans and so on these are
things that we critically must look at if we're going to have healthy islands.
So, Charlie Barr, who testified earlier represents a new staff person and he comes with a
14-year experience with the Ocean Conservancy, a professional in the field and exciting
to me to have someone on staff that can help us both educationally and explore how we
can utilize the resources in our community.
The EAST Program, the Maui Nui Botanical Garden, the Parks and Recreation
Department so many businesses, community and groups are our partners and help us.
And we reach into the resources of business. You would have been so excited last week
to see eight semis and an excavator working at the old Maui High School to help move
the debris into the recycling areas. And just things that happen because businesses care
and community cares and government cares. And I thank you very much for your
support.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Dapitan. Members? Seeing none. Thank you very much.
Susana Browne followed by Sally Barron.
MS. SUSANA BROWNE: Good evening. Thank you very much for allowing me to come here
this evening. I'm Susana Browne, the Education Director at Maui Arts and Cultural
Center. And I just want to thank you for your continued support for the MACC and for
the help with our education programs. In these times of high stakes testing and pressure
on our kids the Arts are even more important. It gives them the joy that they need to be
motivated to stay in school and also gives them discipline to excel.
Our Can Do Day Program sees 6,000 kids every year in Grades 1 to 5 come to the Center
for hands-on standard spaced lessons in drama, dance, and visual arts taught by a
professional teaching artists. Another 600 kids get this program when we take it to
Molokai, Lanai and Hana.
We would really hope that you come see our Celebrating the Artists, our new student
exhibit that we have had every year since even before we opened. It's going to be
April 15th to May 7th. This year a very different kind of an exhibit. Kids in Grades K to
8 are responding to poems written by Maui poets. So there will be over 2,000 pieces all
done on 8x8 foam core pieces and all visual arts responding to these wonderful poems.
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Improving writing through image making is a new project at Kihei School that we started
this year, which is looking ... which is actually doing research to see if kids writing
improves if we give them strategies to excite their imaginations and use visual arts as a
prompt. What we're finding is so exciting in this project that we've been invited to
present at the International Reading Association Conference in Hilo in November.
This is our 8th year of the secondary schools Spring Band Concerts in the Castle Theater.
A whole generation of kids have experienced this. Those kids that first came there in
middle school for these concerts are now graduating from college. We've had several
band directors that have retired in the time that we've had these concerts.
Again, all of this we absolutely could not do without the support of the County. And
these programs are made accessible to our kids because of your support and I thank you
very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Browne. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you.
Sally Barron followed by Dr. Richard Sword.
MS. BARRON: Honorable Council members, I'm Sally Barron and I'm representing the Maui
Office of the National Kidney Foundation of Hawaii. I don't know where to start other
than to tell you that we haven't ever applied to the County before but the demand for our
services is to great at this point that we have come forward with a small grant, a little
over $50,000 to expand our programs on Maui.
The bottom line is there is a growing epidemic of kidney disease and failures throughout
Hawaii and especially on Maui and it needs to be addressed. In our studies we know that
over 200,000 Hawaii residents have kidney disease and most don't even know they have
it. Kidney disease is a silent and devastating disease that kills people. And we know that
one in seven Hawaii residents has kidney disease and most, as I said, don't know it. It's
under-diagnosed, it's under-treated and the programs that we propose to provide are not
provided by any other organization or agency.
This epidemic is growing. It's projected by 2010 these numbers of going to double. And
so we have a really serious health threat in our County and throughout the State. The
programs that we do we know that kidney disease is preventable but you have to identify
it first. The leading factors are diabetes and high blood pressure. There are high risk
groups. In fact, we lead the country in kidney disease and failure with a rate 30 percent
higher than anywhere else in the nation. And the high risk groups are native Hawaiians,
Japanese and Filipinos. So those are our target groups but kidney disease can hit
anybody whether they have any genetic background in their family history of having any
of those symptoms.
We know that through studies that we have done that early childhood diseases can
damage the kidneys, and there are some treatments that different cultures do. Some
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people don't have insurance or they're reluctant to go to doctors. There are certain
culture groups like that. So half of the population that has kidney failure it comes out of
nowhere - no family history, no nothing. Could be strep throat when they were a child or
something that damaged their organs. But the fact of the matter is, the dialysis centers
here on Maui, both of them, are packed. And it's doubling.
And so we propose to hire another staff person. I am a single staff person here on Maui
and I can't meet the demand of the number people that need it. We had five people die
on dialysis in the last month and the numbers are growing. And if you've seen somebody
on dialysis and I know most of you remember Councilman Pat Kawano and the struggle
that he had. When you've seen that and you've seen people in dialysis and how it
impacts their families you want to do whatever you can to prevent it, and it can be
prevented. So we have a number of programs that we do in a way of identifying different
groups in the community and doing actual screenings with them, giving them home
testing kits, comprehensive kidney screenings. We do services where we provide full
workshops on intervention to stop it or delay it in its tracks once somebody has been
identified. We have programs where we share with patients and their families what
changes are going to occur when they go on dialysis and what their choices are, how to
get on the waiting list for kidney transplant. There's no end to what we can do but
primarily this grant is to get a program person to work with me.
So we appreciate your interest in the fact that you've accepted our proposal and we hope
you'll fund it and I want to thank you very much. I know many of you are very
concerned about this disease.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Barron. Members, any questions? Couple of questions for
you, Ms. Barron. The 50,000 ... is it a $50,000 request?
MS. BARRON: It's $50,400.
CHAIR KANE: $50,400?
MS. BARRON: Yes. For both years. We put in for both, same amount for both years.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Your application is currently in the Mayor's proposed budget or you're
here asking us to put something into the budget?
MS. BARRON: It is, as far as I know, this is a new grant and when I looked at what the Mayor
had proposed there was nothing shown for the first year. There was $200,000 shown for
the second year funding for programs like ours that are new, that are coming in asking for
assistance.
CHAIR KANE:
person?

Okay.

And specifically the $50,000 request is to hire an additional staff
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MS. BARRON: Hire the staff person and also to pay for some of the program costs that we do.
rn fact, it's a very no frills budget. It's really just a position and program related costs
totally.
CHAIR KANE: Have you provided anything in writing for the Committee to take a look at?
And if not, if you could, please, we would appreciate receiving something from you.
MS. BARRON: Okay. I'd be glad to. The only thing that I have submitted is the actual
proposal but I would be happy to do that.
CHAIR KANE: Great. I appreciate that. Thank you. Members, any questions? Hearing none.
Thank you very much. Dr. Richard Sword followed by James "Kimo" Apana.
MR. SWORD: Thanks a lot for listening to us tonight you folks. I appreciate that. I'm Dr.
Richard Sword and I'm here to encourage your continued support of the Makawao Main
Street Association. We see Maui County as a county of small towns and we think that
it's one of the things that really make us unique. And each small town has it's own little
quality and we know that Maui is growing rapidly and that's not likely going to stop.
And so that's kind of a good news. And at the same time would like to provide the small
town quality to continue in our community as much as possible and to support the local
people and long-term residents in the type of lifestyle that we enjoy here. And so we
appreciate your support. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Dr. Sword. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
for your testimony and thanks for hanging in there.
MR. SWORD: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: James "Kimo" Apana is our last person signed up to testify. If there's anybody
else here that would like to testify that hasn't done so, you can come forward and see our
staff. Good evening, Mayor.
MR. AP ANA: Good evening. If you was wondering, Troop 40 was here to earn their
government patch or something and Grant Chun is one of their troop leaders. Anyway,
I'm here tonight because I got e-mailed this past week to come and speak before you on
the $7 million purchase for the Wailuku Water Company and their assets. So I called this
person, Mrs. Sproat, the Attorney, and asked her why did you ask me to come to testify?
She said, well, you've been working on this before you left office and we think you have
something to say about this particular issue. So we chatted a bit. And I believe that the
Mayor's request for $7 million for the purchase of the watershed and some ofthe assets is
a good purchase. It's something that we worked on even before I left office. But I think
you guys can do one step better, and time is of the essence. The company that currently
owns these assets has the ability to sell them, issue water rights with the lands they sell,
which I've done in the past. I think a much more prudent measure would be to have a
resolution and just acquire through condemnation, and the government can own it
- 27 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council ofthe County ofMaui

April 3, 2006 (Kahului)

immediately and then go forward and pay fair market value which I think is fair. If the
intention is to own this water system and the watershed in perpetuity for the people of
Maui County and not by some foreign entity or any other entity, then I say resolution for
condemnation is in the best interest of all parties concerned. And I'm here to speak on
behalf of those that put the proposal before you to accept that in the lease but to consider
a resolution, if possible. That's it.
MR. AP ANA: Good evening. If you was wondering, Troop 40 was here to earn their government patch
or something and Grant Chun is one of their troop leaders. Anyway, I'm here tonight because I
got e-mailed this past week to come and speak before you on the $7 million purchase for the
Wailuku Water Company and their assets. So I called this person, Mrs. Sproat, the Attorney, and
asked her why did you ask me to come to testify? She said, well, you've been working on this
before you left office and we think you have something to say about this particular issue. So we
chatted a bit. And I believe that the Mayor's request for $7 million for the purchase of the
watershed and some of the assets is a good purchase. It's something that we worked on even
before I left office. But I think you guys can do one step better, and time is of the essence. The
company that currently owns these assets has the ability to sell them, issue water rights with the
lands they sell, which I've done in the past. I think a much more prudent measure would be to
have a resolution and just acquire through condemnation, and the government can own it
immediately and then go forward and pay fair market value which I think is fair. If the intention
is to own this water system and the watershed in perpetuity for the people of Maui County and
not by some foreign entity or any other entity, then I say resolution for condemnation is in the
best interest of all parties concerned. And I'm here to speak on behalf of those that put the
proposal before you to accept that in the lease but to consider a resolution, if possible. That's it.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. If you could state your name for the record, Mayor.
MR. APANA: James "Kimo" Apana.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Apana? Question. I know that we have a
proposal that's connected to it on the appraisal. With that proposal before us, wouldn't it be
prudent for us to look at the outcome of that before we move forward with a purchase dollar
amount?
MR. AP ANA: If the goal is to own this watershed or this asset, if you want to call it, and under the
County ownership paying fair market value is not an unfair request. We were looking at the
estimated. We had a hard time to get people to value it. Now they're stating a value of $7
million based on their stockholdership, and that's what's they're setting the price at. I'm not sure
how you guys are going to buy the company but my suggestion would be not to buy the company
because it comes with liability. Whenever you buy a corporation, you buy the assets and the
liability. The liability which this Wailuku Water Company carries is that they have issued water
rights to land sales they have done in the past. So if you buy the company, you're buying the
leases to supply these lands with water and I don't believe those leases are legal but that's what
you're buying. Through condemnation, you're just buying the assets, the property. You're not
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buying any contracts, you're not buying any type of liability, you just want the property because
that's what you want it for so you can restore the streams and other things.
And just on a closing note, I wouldn't necessarily use this fresh water or open ditch system for
our drinking water. Not quite yet. There's potential to have ... there are potential, there are
potential water sources deep within the watershed that is groundwater subsurface and it's clean.
But ifit's there, I think that is a better and more prudent move to get clean water. Why take dirty
water and try to clean it if you can start with fresh water? So this water should be thrown back in
the streams so Mr. Duey and others like him can do their traditional farming, and the way it
should be because we have an opportunity of a life time because agriculture no longer needs this
vast amount of water.
CHAIR KANE: The condemnation for the ... I guess the question is, according to the Mayor, that he's
not looking at the watershed itself but just the intake system. Do you have comments on that?
MR. AP ANA: Yeah. I think that particular issue the Mayor is making is more political than prudent.
The Water Department, as you look at Waihee, tried to build a water well. They tried to buy
10,000 sq. ft. land to put a well in the ground and the Judge said, no, you can't just buy the land
to put a water shaft. You need to buy the entire watershed. And for him to say that we're just
going to buy the intake would invoke the same lawsuit and the County would lose, I believe.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any further questions, Members? Hearing none, thank you for
your testimony.
MR. APANA: You'rewe1come.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. If you could state your name for the record, Mayor.
MR. AP ANA: James "Kimo" Apana.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Apana? Question. I know that we have a
proposal that's connected to it on the appraisal. With that proposal before us, wouldn't it be
prudent for us to look at the outcome of that before we move forward with a purchase dollar
amount?
MR. AP ANA: If the goal is to own this watershed or this asset, if you want to call it, and under the
County ownership paying fair market value is not an unfair request. We were looking at the
estimated. We had a hard time to get people to value it. Now they're stating a value of $7
million based on their stockholdership, and that's what's they're setting the price at. I'm not sure
how you guys are going to buy the company but my suggestion would be not to buy the company
because it comes with liability. Whenever you buy a corporation, you buy the assets and the
liability. The liability which this Wailuku Water Company carries is that they have issued water
rights to land sales they have done in the past. So if you buy the company, you're buying the
leases to supply these lands with water and I don't believe those leases are legal but that's what
you're buying. Through condemnation, you're just buying the assets, the property. You're not
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buying any contracts, you're not buying any type of liability, you just want the property because
that's what you want it for so you can restore the streams and other things.
And just on a closing note, I wouldn't necessarily use this fresh water or open ditch system for
our drinking water. Not quite yet. There's potential to have ... there are potential, there are
potential water sources deep within the watershed that is groundwater subsurface and it's clean.
But ifit's there, I think that is a better and more prudent move to get clean water. Why take dirty
water and try to clean it if you can start with fresh water? So this water should be thrown back in
the streams so Mr. Duey and others like him can do their traditional farming, and the way it
should be because we have an opportunity of a life time because agriculture no longer needs this
vast amount of water.
CHAIR KANE: The condemnation for the ... I guess the question is, according to the Mayor, that he's
not looking at the watershed itself but just the intake system. Do you have comments on that?
MR. AP ANA: Yeah. I think that particular issue the Mayor is making is more political than prudent.
The Water Department, as you look at Waihee, tried to build a water well. They tried to buy
10,000 sq. ft. land to put a well in the ground and the Judge said, no, you can't just buy the land
to put a water shaft. You need to buy the entire watershed. And for him to say that we're just
going to buy the intake would invoke the same lawsuit and the County would lose, I believe.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any further questions, Members? Hearing none, thank you for
your testimony.
MR. APANA: You're welcome.
CHAIR KANE: We have one person signed up to testify, Jeff Reiss. And forgive me if I'm
mispronouncing your name, sir.
MR. REISS: That's right. You got it.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. REISS: Good evening. I'm Jeff Reiss. And I've come to ask you to continue your support
for MEDB. I'm CEO of a small high-tech company here on Maui called Peletex and
MEDB has been instrumental in helping us get funding for our high technology project.
We have two US patents and foreign filing rights and we're working with Sandia
National Laboratories. The first phase was funded
money but it came through a
new high technology company or nonprofit group called HTDV (Hawaii Technology
Development Venture). Anyway, I'm tied in with a lot of the ... what's going on hightech wise here in Hawaii and because of MEDB I became aware of a funding opportunity
that we were successful in obtaining. First round, we completed $200,000 and we're now
into the second round of funding - $345,000 for proof of concept and moving our product
to commercialization and opportunities for more jobs and to diversify the economy. And
I wouldn't be able to tell you that ifit wasn't for MEDB so that's why I'm here to ask for
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your support for their programs to promote high technology and job growth in a positive
direction on Maui. Thank: you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank: you, Mr. Reiss. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank: you for
your testimony.
MR. REISS: Thank: you.
CHAIR KANE: Is there anybody else here who has not testified that would like to testify?
Seeing none.

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: We'd like to thank: all of you for allowing us to be here to hear your thoughts
regarding the Mayor's proposed budget. We meet every day in the Council Chambers at
9 o'clock in the morning and we will be continuing to do so live on Akaku. If you have
any questions or comments that you'd like to send, please let us know. Thank: you very
much for being here this evening. This meeting for April 3, 2006 is adjourned. . .
.(gavel) . ..

ACTION:

ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

8: 10 p.m.

Transcribed by: Jo-Ann Sato
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